»

Sy

YORK

CITY Q©F

N

/

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Corporate and Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling In)

To: Councillors Galvin (Chair), Burton, D'Agorne, Fraser,
Horton, Hyman, King, Potter, Mcllveen, Runciman (Vice-
Chair) and Steward
Date: Monday, 16 March 2015
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: The Auden Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G047)
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest
At this point, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.
2. Public Participation

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who
have registered to speak can do so. The deadline for
registering is 5.00pm on Friday 13 March 2015. Members of
the public can speak on agenda items or matters within the
remit of the committee.

To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for
the meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda

www.york.gov.uk



Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

Please note this meeting may be filmed and webcast or audio
recorded and that includes any registered public speakers, who
have given their permission. The broadcast can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if sound recorded, this will
be uploaded onto the Council’s website following the meeting.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all
those present. It can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for
webcasting_filming_and_recording_of council_meetings

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the
Committee held on 23 February 2015.

Called-In Item: The Council's Housing for Older People
Programme (Pages 7 - 36)

To consider the decisions made by the Cabinet at their meeting
held on 3 March 2015 in relation to the above item, which has
been called in firstly by Councillors Aspden, Runciman and
Waller and secondly by Councillors Doughty, Douglas and
Wiseman in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. A cover
report is attached setting out the reasons for the call-in and the
remit and powers of the Corporate and Scrutiny Management
Committee (Calling-In) in relation to the call-in, together with the
original report and the decisions of Cabinet.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings

Democracy Officers
Name: Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job-share)

Contact Details:
Telephone: (01904) 551031
Email: catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and louise.cook@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMIESIREEEESS (cantonese)
¥ B2 FNIF o SEE (R (TS AT | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wilasnym jezyku. (Foflsih)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
GRS D G ST b (rdw
T (01904) 551550



mailto:catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

City Of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Corporate and Scrutiny Management
Committee (Calling In)

Date 23 February 2015

Present Councillors Galvin (Chair), Burton, D'Agorne,

Fraser, Horton, King, Potter, Runciman (Vice-
Chair) and Steward

Apologies Councillors Mcllveen and Hyman

26. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members were asked to declare any
personal interests not included on the register of interests, any
prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary interests which
they might have in respect of the business on the agenda.

Councillor Potter declared a personal non prejudicial interest in
relation to the called-in item: A Congestion Commission for
York, as Manager of York Wheels, in terms of congestion on
Tadcaster Road.

Councillor D’Agorne declared a personal non prejudicial interest
in relation to the called-in item: A Congestion Commission for
York, as a member of the Cyclists’ Touring Club.

27. Public Participation

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Paul Hepworth spoke on behalf of the Cyclists Touring Club,
asking Members to reject the call-in and support a Congestion
Commission with cross party membership to pursue the goal of
York’s current Transport Plan.

28. Minutes
Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting of the

Committee held on 19 January 2015 be approved
and signed by the Chair as a correct record.



29.

Page 2

Called In Item: A Congestion Commission For York

Members received a report which asked them to consider the
decision made by the Cabinet on 10 February 2015, in relation
to the establishment of a Congestion Commission for York.
Proposals for a city-wide conversation building on known
expertise in the field had also been proposed in an effort to
bring forward strategic recommendations for Council to
consider.

Details of the Cabinet’s decision were attached at Annex A to
the report and the original report of the Director of City and
Environmental Services to the Cabinet, attached at Annex B.

The original decision had firstly been called in by Councillors
Richardson, Healey and Doughty on the following grounds:

e [t is difficult to see how such a large new look at
congestion can be embarked upon given the refusal
of the cabinet to look into lessons learned from the
Lendal Bridge trial,

e |tis wrong for the council to commit to fund a major
committee, select its members, including paid
independent experts, and set out the committee’s
operating criteria and timeline three months prior to
local council elections, which may well result in a
change in the priorities of the council;

e There is an issue of democratic accountability and it
lessens the chance of having an outcome which will
realistically be implemented, that the panel will have
more non-elected than elected members;

e Itis naive to suggest that such decisions could
possibly be made without taking into account the
political calculations of all members of the council,
which this close to an election would not necessarily
be conductive to creating an independent committee
seeking long-term solutions;

o The costs of the proposed committee are well
beyond the budget set for internal scrutiny
committees and too high given the other pressures
on council funds.



Page 3

The original decision had secondly been called in by Councillors
Aspden, King and Watson on the following grounds:

e These proposals involve spending £135,000 - mostly
on expensive external consultants — but fail to
demonstrate that this expenditure offers value-for-
money for residents.

e The report says that “officers have reviewed a range
of such bodies” but these options on the
size/structure/cost of the committee have not been
presented to opposition members.

e Appointments (including the Chair) and various
approaches have been made without any reference
to the views of opposition members.

e The report does not specify direct resident and
business involvement on the committee only the
creation of a vague sounding Citizen’s Jury.

e The report does not properly show how existing
council staff/resources/previous studies will be
properly utilised.

e The report fails to give a clear commitment to an
achievable timeframe or tangible, realistic and cost-
effective outcomes.

Councillor Richardson addressed the meeting on behalf of the
first group of Calling In members. He highlighted their principle
concerns as the timing of the Commission, and the commitment
to funding, prior to the election in May. He also referred to
signage in the city which he felt was not user friendly and
requested that work was undertaken to resolve this issue prior
to the allocation of any additional funding for congestion.

Councillor Watson, also addressed the meeting on behalf of the
second group of Calling In members. He expressed concern
that previous cross party comments reported to Cabinet
appeared to have been ignored and to the reference, in the
report, to examining what was likely to work before an
assessment would be made of how it would be paid for. He
therefore questioned whether the Commission would provide
value for money, also pointing out that there was no information



Page 4

as to how Officers views and previous congestion work and
studies would be used by the Commission.

The Cabinet Member for Transport, Planning and Economic
Development, spoke in response to the points made for the call-
in of the decision. He pointed out that the decision taken to
establish a Congestion Commission had been put forward to
show a commitment to the city, prior to the election. Also that
there was cross party support to examine ways in which tackle
the issues of congestion. He confirmed that a final decision in
respect of any Commission recommendations would require
Council approval. He reminded Members that earlier work,
including that undertaken by scrutiny committee’s had not
resulted in solutions to the city’s traffic problems, however the
information collated would be used in any work subsequently
undertaken.

Members questioned the Chairing and membership of the
Commission and referred to the funding required whilst budget
cuts were being made to front line services. They also
questioned how this work would be different to that undertaken
previously

The Director of City and Environmental Services and Assistant
Director for Transport, Highways and Fleet provided further
information in answer to Members questions and in support of
the Cabinet’s decision. They highlighted the work that had
already taken place in the city, with the provision of Park and
Ride sites, support for cycling and sustainable transport,
however, despite this work, congestion and air quality remained
a major challenge. They confirmed that changes had been
made to earlier reports to Members on congestion and that the
current proposals would include a large community engagement
exercise, as any recommendations would require behavioural
and infrastructure changes.

Following further lengthy discussion Councillor Potter moved,
and Councillor Horton seconded, that approval be given to
option A, that the original decision of Cabinet be confirmed, as
there were no grounds to refer the decision back. On being put
to the vote this was lost.

Councillor Galvin, then moved and Councillor Steward
seconded, and on being put to the vote it was



Page 5

Resolved: That Option B be approved and that the
decision of the Cabinet be referred back with a
recommendation that Cabinet defers any
consideration of the setting up of a Congestion
Commission until after the local election in
May 2015.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of the
Council’s Constitution.

CllIr J Galvin, Chair
[The Meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 6.30 pm].



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

YORK

éj\# CITY OF
b‘ COUNCIL

Corporate and Scrutiny Management Committee 16 March 2015
(Calling = In)

Report of the Assistant Director, Governance and ICT

Called-in Item: The Council’s Housing for Older People Programme

Summary

This report sets out the reasons for the call-in of the decisions made
by the Cabinet on 3 March 2015 in relation to an update on the
Council’s existing Housing for Older People Programme and approval
given to pursue an alternative approach to the provision of
accommodation with care for older people, subject to agreement of a
detailed business case.

This cover report sets out the powers and role of the Corporate and
Scrutiny Management Committee in relation to dealing with the call-in.

Background

An extract from the Decision Sheet issued after the Cabinet meeting is
attached as Annex A to this report. This sets out the decision taken by
the Cabinet on the called-in item. The original report to the Cabinet
meeting on the called-in item is attached as Annex B to this report.

Cabinet’s decision has been called in, firstly, by Councillors Aspden,
Runciman and Waller for review by the Corporate and Scrutiny
Management Committee (CSMC) (Calling-In), in accordance with the
constitutional requirements for call-in. The following are the reasons
given for the call-in:

The report from Cabinet should include:
e A full assessment of the reasons for the failure of the EPH

project, the decision-making timeline, and a detailed analysis of
the costs incurred.



Page 8

A comprehensive explanation for why the Lowfield Care Village
proposal has been abandoned.

A commitment to investigate and publish a report on the
governance and management of the overall project, including
the suggestion that finances could be “fudged”.

A commitment to carry out a full consultation with local
residents on the future of the Lowfields site (including the
playing fields).

Following this, a commitment to present to members a range of
options (with business cases) for the future of the site including
an assessment of whether a different provider could deliver a
Care Village at Lowfields.

The decision has then subsequently also been called in by Councillors
Doughty, Douglas and Wiseman for review by the Corporate and
Scrutiny Management Committee (CSMC) (Calling-In), in accordance
with the constitutional requirements for call-in. The following are the
reasons given for the call-in:

More information is needed regarding the business case for the
plan, including projections regarding the long-term economic
viability of the proposal;

Because the previous plans collapsed due to poor governance,
poor financial planning and minimal project management
arrangements CYC needs to properly understand what went
wrong regarding the previous model and what is needed for the
new plan to succeed before committing to further borrowing.
As the Chief Executive intends to conduct a full review of the
lack of governance on the last proposal it is sensible to wait
until this has been reported before a final commitment to a new
plan is undertaken;

Clarification is needed regarding the sites selected for the new
plan and whether these sites represent the best solution in
terms of both achieving best value for residents and best use
of the proposed sites.



Page 9

Consultation

4. In accordance with the requirements of the Constitution, the calling-in
Members have been invited to attend and/or speak at the Call-In
meeting, as appropriate.

Options

5. The following options are available to CSMC (Calling-In) Members in
relation to dealing with this call-in, in accordance with the constitutional
and legal requirements under the Local Government Act 2000:

a. To decide that there are no grounds to make specific
recommendations to the Cabinet in respect of the report. If this
option is chosen, the original decision taken on the item by the
Cabinet on 3 March 2015 will be confirmed and will take effect
from the date of the CSMC (Calling-In) meeting; or

b. To make specific recommendations to the Cabinet on the
report, in light of the reasons given for the call-in. If this option
is chosen, the matter will be reconsidered by Cabinet at a
meeting of Cabinet (Calling-In) to be held on 24 March 2015.

Analysis

6. Members need to consider the reasons for call-in and the report to the
Cabinet and form a view on whether there is a basis to make specific
recommendations to the Cabinet in respect of the report.

Council Plan

7. There are no direct implications for this call-in in relation to the delivery
of the Council Plan and its priorities for 2011-15.

Implications

8. There are no known Financial, HR, Legal, Property, Equalities, or Crime
and Disorder implications in relation to the following in terms of dealing
with the specific matter before Members; namely, to determine and
handle the call-in.



Page 10

Risk Management

9. There are no risk management implications associated with the call in
of this matter.

Recommendations:

10. Members are asked to consider all the reasons for calling in this
decision and decide whether they wish to confirm the decisions made
by the Cabinet or refer the matter back for reconsideration and make
specific recommendations on the report to Cabinet.

Reason: To enable the called-in matter to be dealt with efficiently and in
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution.

Contact details:

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Dawn Steel Andrew Docherty

Head of Civic & Assistant Director, Governance and ICT

Democratic Services

01904 551030 Report \ |Date 6 March 2015
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None

Wards Affected: All [

For further information please contact the author of the report
Annexes

Annex A — Extract from the Decision Sheet produced following the Cabinet
meeting on the called-in item.

Annex B — Report of the Director of Adult Social Care to Cabinet, 3 March
2015.

Background Papers
None



Page 11
ANNEX A

CABINET
TUESDAY, 3 MARCH 2015
Extract from DECISIONS Sheet

Set out below is a summary of the decisions taken at the Cabinet
meeting held on Tuesday, 3 March 2015. The wording used does
not necessarily reflect the actual wording that will appear in the
minutes.

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in a
decision, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group no
later than 4.00pm on Thursday 5 March 2015.

If you have any queries about any matters referred to in this
decision sheet please contact Jill Pickering T:(01904) 552061,
E: jill.pickering@york.gov.uk.

6. The Council’s Housing For Older People Programme

Resolved: That Cabinet agree to:

() A new approach to the provision of
accommodation with care for older people
which, subject to approval of the detailed
business case:

¢ makes best use of the existing Sheltered
Housing with Extra Care accommodation
owned by the Council by changes to
allocations and lettings, staffing changes
and capital investment so that residents
with care needs, including those with
complex needs and those with dementia,
can be accommodated,;

e authorises officers to develop the business
case for an integrated care, health,
housing and community facility on the
Burnholme School site so that residents
with care needs, including those with
complex needs and those with dementia,


mailto:jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

Page 12
ANNEX A

can be accommodated alongside health,
sports, library, nursery, other community
facilities and family housing.

supports and encourages the independent
sector to develop and provide additional
care beds by use of block-purchase, help,
advice and (if viable) grants or loans so
that residents with care needs, including
those with complex needs and those with
dementia, can be accommodated,;

authorises officers to seek funding
opportunities for, and if necessary an
Registered Social Landlord partner to
develop, a newly built Extra Care and
Health Hub in Acomb on a site made
vacant by the closure of an existing
Council-run Older Persons’ Home (OPH),
foregoing a capital receipt for the site;

allocates the development site at
Lowfields for housing use which would
include homes to rent and to buy for older
residents who down-size from a family
home as well as family housing, subject to
obtaining a capital receipt for the land;

authorises the potential disposal and
development of up to four sites made
vacant by the closure of existing Council-
run OPHs for housing use which would
include homes to rent and to buy by older
residents who down-size from a family
home, subject to obtaining a capital
receipt for the land and also the disposal
of the remaining sites when they become
vacant in accordance with the Council’s
disposal policy; and

agrees to the development of a detailed
business case which sets out how all of
the above proposals can be funded either
within existing budget provision or by a
combination of council and other external



Page 13
ANNEX A

funding.

(i)  Approve the use of unspent project
management funds allocated for this purpose
in 2013 to facilitate moving forward this
programme of work, with further costs to be
included in the business case for specific
activities in the plan.

(i)  Receive further reports to update Cabinet on
progress of these plans and to submit for
approval the detailed business case for the
Burnholme development and other
investments.

(iv) Abandon the procurement of care homes at
Burnholme and Lowfields (plus a Community
Village and Community Hub) on the grounds
of unaffordablity.

Reason: (i) To provide suitable accommodation, ideally in
a community setting, for the city’s older
residents including those with complex care
needs, those with dementia and those
moving out of, or diverted from moving to,
existing Council-run OPHs which are no
longer fit-for-purpose.

(i) So that the project can progress.

(i) To ensure that Members are kept informed of
progress and that the financial implications of
investments in property are considered.

(iv) That the procurement exercise was unable to
provide a solution that fulfilled the Council’s
requirements within the financial resources
available to the project.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15
ANNEX B

Cabinet

3 March 2015

Report of the Director of Adult Social Care from the portfolio of the
Cabinet Member for Health and Community Engagement

The Council’s Housing for Older People Programme

Recommendations

1. Members are asked to:

a. Agree to a new approach to the provision of accommodation
with care for older people which, subject to approval of the
detailed business case:

makes best use of the existing Sheltered Housing with
Extra Care accommodation owned by the Council by
changes to allocations and lettings, staffing changes and
capital investment so that residents with care needs,
including those with complex needs and those with
dementia, can be accommodated,;

. authorises officers to develop the business case for an

integrated care, health, housing and community facility on
the Burnholme School site so that residents with care
needs, including those with complex needs and those
with dementia, can be accommodated alongside health,
sports, library, nursery, other community facilities and
family housing.

supports and encourages the independent sector to
develop and provide additional care beds by use of block-
purchase, help, advice and (if viable) grants or loans so
that residents with care needs, including those with
complex needs and those with dementia, can be
accommodated;



Vi.

Vii.

Page 16
ANNEX B

authorises officers to seek funding opportunities for, and
if necessary an RSL partner to develop, a newly built
Extra Care and Health Hub in Acomb on a site made
vacant by the closure of an existing Council-run Older
Persons’ Home (OPH), foregoing a capital receipt for the
site;

allocates the development site at Lowfields for housing
use which would include homes to rent and to buy for
older residents who down-size from a family home as well
as family housing, subject to obtaining a capital receipt
for the land;

authorises the potential disposal and development of up
to four sites made vacant by the closure of existing
Council-run OPHs for housing use which would include
homes to rent and to buy by older residents who down-
size from a family home, subject to obtaining a capital
receipt for the land and also the disposal of the remaining
sites when they become vacant in accordance with the
Council’s disposal policy; and

agrees to the development of a detailed business case
which sets out how all of the above proposals can be
funded either within existing budget provision or by a
combination of council and other external funding.

Reason: to provide suitable accommodation, ideally in a
community setting, for the city’s older residents including those
with complex care needs, those with dementia and those moving
out of, or diverted from moving to, existing Council-run OPHs
which are no longer fit-for-purpose.

b. Approve the use of unspent project management funds
allocated for this purpose in 2013 to facilitate moving forward
this programme of work, with further costs to be included in the
business case for specific activities in the plan.

Reason: So that the project can progress.

c. Agree to receive further reports to update Cabinet on progress
of these plans and to submit for approval the detailed business
case for the Burnholme development and other investments.



Page 17
ANNEX B

Reason: to ensure that Members are kept informed of progress
and that the financial implications of investments in property are
considered.

d. Agree to abandon the procurement of care homes at
Burnholme and Lowfields (plus a Community Village and
Community Hub) on the grounds of unaffordablity.

Reason: that the procurement exercise was unable to provide a
solution that fulfilled the Council’s requirements within the financial
resources available to the project.

Summary

This report provides an update on the Council’s existing Housing
for Older People Programme and seeks permission to pursue an
alternative approach.

The Council are currently involved in a live procurement process
to find a partner to deliver new care home facilities and a
community village for older people; this procurement process has
been paused because, during the competitive dialogue phase, it
became apparent that the Council’s detailed requirements for the
project (advertised to the market at the outset of the procurement
process) are not deliverable within the funding available. The
Council have worked within the legal framework provided by the
procurement process to find a viable solution to meet our needs
but the most recent budget review confirms that no more money is
available to support this scheme and with construction costs rising
the options for our potential partner to model an alternative is
limited.

Since the procurement begun in 2013 York’s care and housing
sectors, and the national funding framework, have changed and
we therefore have access to an alternative approach and
resources to meet the care and accommodation needs of older
people that is community focused and progresses key strategic
aims of the city:

a. reform the provision of existing Extra Care Housing, and seek
to build new provision, in order to meet the needs of those with
complex care needs and those with dementia, accelerating a
commitment made in the 2011 Older Persons’ Housing
Strategy (and later in the York Supported Housing Strategy
2014-2019, published in 2013) and taking advantage of Homes



Page 18
ANNEX B

& Communities Agency funding available for Housing with Care
and Support;

b. integrate the provision of care facilities for older people and
people with dementia into the wider redevelopment of the
Burnholme School site, bringing together community and health
services including GP services, the Tang Hall library (Explore),
sports and child care facilities; giving life to a renewed
commitment of the Clinical Commissioning Group, published in
June 2014, for health and care service to work together in “care
hubs”, taking advantage of a range of potential funding
including the government’s Primary Care Infrastructure Fund;

c. work more closely with current providers of care to deliver more
beds for those with dementia in locations across the city,
responding to renewed interest from independent providers and
supporting smaller providers where we can;

d. expand the provision of housing options for older people in
Acomb by developing the Lowfields site for housing, which
would include homes targeted at older residents who wish to
down-size (following the success of similar schemes which
opened in 2014) while at the same time earmarking the
potentially vacant OPH site of Oak Haven on Front Street
(subject to planning and other considerations) as suitable for
Extra Care Housing and Health Hub for older people; and

e. explore the use of the existing sites of Morrell House, Willow
House, Windsor House and Woolnough House, as they are
released by the closure of OPHs, for development as
“‘downsizing” homes to buy and to rent by older people,
complementing the provision of family homes and ensuring that
vibrant communities used by local people replace what is there
at present.

Recently announced funding available from the Homes &
Communities Agency and NHS England afford the opportunity for
change as they facilitate investments not envisaged by the
previous plan.

The alignment of Care and Health services in York continues at a
pace with strategic alignment being identified in the Clinical
Commissioning Group’s five year plan published in 2014 and the
most recent decision of the CCG and City of York Council to



Page 19
ANNEX B

submit a bid to the government’s New Models of Care Programme
to become a vanguard provider. The intention of the Programme
Is to speed up the development of new care models for promoting
health and wellbeing and providing care. The delivery of housing
with care and the exciting proposals for Burnholme give life to this
new way of work.

It is recommended that we abandon the current procurement
process and seek Cabinet approval to begin work on the new
approach.

Our aim is still to provide replacement accommodation to facilitate
the completion of the Housing for Older People programme (which
currently accommodates up to 213 residents with a further twelve
used by health colleagues as step down beds), achieved as
follows:

What By Units of OPHs
when accommodation replaced
Making best use of Existing | 2015/16 | 14 2
Extra Care Housing 2016/17 | 14
2017/18 | 46
Additional independent 2017/18 | 36 1
sector care beds
Care and community Hub at | 2018/19 | 60 2
Burnholme
New Extra Care homes 2018/19 | 43
TOTALS 213 7

Additional capacity will also be generated in the independent
sector, bringing the total new provision up to 265. Further
capacity will be achieved by additional independent sector
provision and the building of down-sizing homes.

The Current Position

10.

11.

In 2011 the Council began a strategic review of its
Accommodation for Older People and in May 2012 Cabinet
agreed to explore options to re-provide.

On 4 June 2013 Cabinet agreed to fund the building of two new
care homes plus other facilities and services on land at Burnholme
and Lowfields (including a community village) so that the city




12.

13.

Page 20
ANNEX B

would meet the needs of residents with dementia and those with
high dependency care needs. It was agreed that the Council
would undertake a competitive dialogue procurement exercise to
procure an external provider who would design, build, operate and
maintain the facilities, funded from capital receipts and revenue
savings released by the closure of the Council’s seven OPHs.
Project costs of up to £500k were earmarked to complete the
procurement process.

The procurement began on 7 June 2013 and in October 2013
three suitably qualified bidders were asked to engage in dialogue
to explore the detail of their proposals. As is the intention of the
competitive dialogue process we explored issues relating to the
proposed timetable, the wider Burnholme site, the transition
arrangements from the existing OPH’s and the affordability of the
project overall. We have continued in dialogue in an attempt to
resolve the key issue of affordability, discussing the matter during
the summer of 2014 and, via internal budget reviews in the
autumn, exploring the potential for more resources to be made
available to the project and the implications of this upon other
service priorities. The conclusion, reached during the budget
setting process for 2015/16, is that no more resources can be
made available to this project over and above those allocated by
Cabinet on 15 May 2013. Cabinet met on 10 February 2015 to
confirm the 2015/16 budget without uplift for this project.

The need for Accommodation with Care

There is still a demonstrated need for accommodation with care in
York, both now and to keep pace with the growing older persons
population.

Accommodation with Care: need & supply 2011 | 2014 |2020 |2030

75+ population 16,486 | 17,200 | 19,600 | 25,800

% change +4% | +14% | +32%
Estimated Demand Residential Care 1,936 | 2,156 | 2,828
Egﬁiﬂrﬁgrﬂfiona‘ Extra Care 440 | 490 |645
Current provision Residential Care

Extra Care




Page 21
ANNEX B

It is noted that:

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

a. In York, we have been successful in supporting people to
continue to live at home and therefore we should not
necessarily strive to meet the national benchmark. However,
even at our current levels of provision and taking into account
planned changes to Council-run homes and growth based on
population change, York will need more residential care in the
coming years.

b. The York Extra Care picture is complex as the majority of
provision is not “full” Extra Care but instead is Sheltered
Housing with Care. In addition, 65 units of accommodation, at
Red Lodge, will soon be taken out of action as the Joseph
Rowntree Housing Trust begins to re-develop.

c. The number of people in York who have dementia is rising and,
as it currently stands, 105 of the 225 bed space in the Council’s
OPHs are occupied by a person diagnosed as having
dementia. As we plan for future accommodation with care we
need to factor in the needs of this citizen group.

Moving Forward

It is recommended that the current procurement process is
abandoned and we move forward with an amended plan which
seeks to address the accommodation needs of older people and
which has a greater community focus that can be delivered, in
smaller steps, which at least initially can be realised quickly.

The Current Procurement

The current procurement is not affordable.

The Council reserved the right within the procurement
documentation to terminate the procurement process at any time.

Should Members agree to abandon the procurement then we will
take the necessary steps to formally inform bidders and close the
current procurement,

Making best use of existing Extra Care Housing

Moving forward, our first focus will be on making best use of the
existing stock of Extra Care Housing in the city. There are five
dedicated sheltered housing with ‘extra care’ services in York



19.

20.

21.

22.

Page 22
ANNEX B

containing 205 units of accommodation. Four of these are Council
managed schemes - Marjorie Waite Court, Gale Farm Court,
Barstow House and Glen Lodge, whilst the fifth (Auden House) is
managed by York Housing Association. All homes in these
schemes are to rent.

A joint Social Care and Housing review has revealed that best use
Is not being made of these assets. Overnight care is not available
as a matter of course and as a consequence the proportion of
residents with care needs is low compared to the national
benchmarks. Currently 61% of residents are not in receipt of a
care package; a national benchmark would suggest that no more
than 30% of residents would have a low care need. Further, only
8% have a high care need against a benchmark of 30%. This
means that this resource is being under-utilised as a solution to
meeting the accommodation needs of older people with care
needs.

It is proposed that, subject to approval by Cabinet, we proceed to
invest care resources, administrative change and, where
necessary, capital in order that best use is made of the existing
Extra Care housing in the city. We will work with exiting residents
to keep disruption to a minimum. As a result of these changes we
anticipate that up to 54 OPH beds can be released from use.

York is also provided with specialist accommodation services for
older people via the Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust including 65
Extra Care flats at Red Lodge in New Earswick. The Joseph
Rowntree Housing Trust have ambitious plans to redevelop Red
Lodge and we will closely follow these proposals, learning and
helping as we go.

Extra Care dementia facilities

Extra Care Housing is a very flexible form of accommodation with
care for older people and has the advantage that residents
remaining living in their own home, which is our stated ambition
wherever we can achieve it, while receiving care and social
support on site. Extra Care has the capacity to accommodate
residents with high care needs and residents with dementia.
Dementia focused accommodation is now featuring in many newly
built Extra Care facilities where the resident with dementia lives in
a “family” setting with others, having their own bedroom and
bathroom, etc. but sharing lounge and dining space. This



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 23
ANNEX B

approach is similar to the “family setting” to care accommodation
that we sought from our purpose-built care homes.

It is proposed that York builds its first Extra Care dementia facility
on land adjacent to Glen Lodge on Sixth Avenue, Heworth, at the
same time refreshing the existing building and bringing care levels
up to the required ratio in order to address the needs of new
residents. This building is in the ownership of the Council and
design and procurement of the works will be undertaken in-house.
Homes & Communities Agency (HCA) funds will also be sought.
We will work with residents to keep disruption to a minimum. We
anticipate having the new facilities open for use by 2017,
accommodating up to 20 residents with dementia who would
otherwise have been accommodated in an OPH.

A key advantage of this approach is that the dementia
accommodation is community based which means that people
may not need to move far in order to be accommodated there,
helping with the maintenance of family and friendship ties and
independence.

Future new build Extra Care schemes will be commissioned with
“dementia facilities”.

New Extra Care provision

York is also under-supplied with Extra Care Housing given the
city’s demographics and the anticipated growth in the numbers of
over 75s expected over the next decade. Analysis suggests that
there will be need for 490 units of Extra Care accommodation by
2020, rising to 645 in 2030, based upon nation benchmarks.
There is a need for both Extra Care to rent and Extra Care to buy;
currently just one third of the provision in York is to buy despite
81% of York’s older residents owning their own home.

The independent sector is beginning to address this need. For
example, McCarthy & Stone are currently building 28 new
sheltered homes to buy at Smithson Court on Top Lane in
Copmanthorpe. Elsewhere in Yorkshire they are beginning to
build and provide their Extra Care offer — called Assisted Living —
and we would expect that they will continue to provide new
accommodation as the market demands.

The current Older Persons’ Housing Strategy states that the
Council should grow the provision of Extra Care in the city and the



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 24
ANNEX B

Homes & Communities Agency has identified funds to facilitate
this growth, including the recently announced Care and Support
Specialist Housing Fund. It is therefore proposed that the Council
sets off on this path now, subject to formal approval by Cabinet,
with the intention of identifying partners who will be willing to build
and run Extra Care in the city, facilitated by HCA grant.

It would be expected that the procurement and construction of
York’s newest Extra Care facility could be completed by 2018,
allowing for the accommodation of up to 43 residents who would
normally live in/move to an OPH, releasing from use one of the
Council’s current OPHs.

In the longer term the Council should consider targeting the
provision of three additional Extra Care schemes by 2025,
providing a total of 180 units of accommodation to buy or rent,
closing the gap in provision for York. Early indications are that the
private and independent sector may be showing interest in
developing such schemes in York, subject to land availability.

Independent Living

York Supported Housing Strategy 2014-2019, published in 2013,
and the Clinical Commissioning Group Integrated Operational
Plan 2014-19, published in June 2014 together drive our ambition
for housing, care and health agencies to work together to deliver
services which support independent living. These plans drive this
and other programmes.

The Housing for Older People programme is linked and
complements our intention to work to keep the ‘frail elderly’ living
safely in their own homes for as long as possible so that demand
for residential care facilities suitable for people with high dementia
and/or physical dependency care needs can be contained within a
proportionately smaller estate of homes. Evidence of the success
of the Council’s re-ablement approach is now clear: admissions to
residential care homes has been held steady despite rises in the
underlying population.

Working with the independent sector to increase supply

Since the Council began on the journey to replace its OPHs the
private market has begun to change in York. An announcement is
expected soon from a private provider who plan to open a 70 to 90
bed care home on the West side of river. This will increase the



34.

35.

36.

37.

Page 25
ANNEX B

guantity of private provision and also adds to the quality of care
provided.

We will continue to engage with existing residential care home
providers to examine what opportunities are available for
expansion of specialist dementia care beds in current homes,
many of which are already registered for this type of care.
Together we will examine the barriers to expansion and the
Council will consider the provision of capital loans and grants to
facilitate the provision of additional dementia care beds in the city.
The provision of loans and grants will need to be assessed against
State Aid rules and the terms strictly defined. Even with modest
success such as scheme could increase dementia care bed
provision by 20 to 40. The Council would be an interested and
active purchaser of these beds for existing OPH residents and for
new entrants to residential care.

Looking towards demand for care beds at 2020 and beyond, the
Council will seek to engage with developers who are currently
looking at sites in York to explore interest in the provision of care
homes (with dementia beds) alongside other homes and services
on these sites. By actively promoting interest in care home
provision we expect to see a growth in provision in the city.

The Burnholme opportunity

Cabinet agreed in July 2014 that the Burnholme School site
should be developed as a Community Health and Wellbeing Hub
which would benefit the community and agreed to seek
development partners to progress this vision.

To help inform this decision the Council held a consultation event
in March 2014 and key messages to emerge were:

a. extensive support for sports uses and for activities that young
people would find of interest;

b. a place to meet and socialise;
c. a place to access local services (Council, health, learning);

d. general acceptance that some residential use (ideally to include
affordable housing) will be required to cross-subsidise other
community activity;



Page 26
ANNEX B

e. preference for re-use of existing buildings and not completely
demolishing the school; and

f. connectivity with Tang Hall and Derwenthorpe via eg green
corridor/cycling paths.

38. We have also spoken with a number of key partners who would be
interested in joining in with the development of “The Burnholme”,
summarised as “an exceptional opportunity to create a place
where people want to be: from toddler to centenarian”. The
development can accommodate a child-care nursery, an Explore
library, a care home, community church, sports areas (both indoor
and outdoor), a GP surgery, community spaces for sessional hire,
Health services, community retail and homes; things to bring all
together.

39. The re-development of this community asset will bring many
benefits to the East of the city as well as meeting city wide need
for care, health facilities, housing and employment.

Meeting iigg%:g%o Delivering Meeting Creating
Community The health and | City-wide Jobs &
Need well being need Enterprise
Burnholme

Explore Library including v v v

cafe

GP medical services v v v v

Pharmacy v v v v

Hair dresser v v v

Care Home @ 82 beds v v v v

CCG treatment and “step- v v v v v

up; step-down” beds

Sports areas, in- and out- v v v

door

Community Church v v v

Community spaces for v v v

sessional hire

Third sector and ‘start up’ v v v

rooms to rent

Homes to buy and rent v v




40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

Page 27
ANNEX B

Officers have met with colleagues in NHS England and the Vale of
York Clinical Commissioning Group and they have expressed
interest in the proposals, describing the concept as
“transformational”. NHS England indicate that funding is likely to
be available for the capital, and some of the revenue, costs
associated with the health elements of the development and a
new funding round may be available in the summer of this year.
Funds may also be available to support feasibility and business
case development.

If it is to be deliverable, the project must be financially sound and
Members are asked to support the further development of the
business case for The Burnholme.

Increasing the variety of accommodation opportunities for Older
People

It is proposed that the Lowfields site be used for the provision of
over 100 new homes including “downsizing” homes to rent and
buy for older people as well as starter homes to rent and buy so
that younger families can get on to the housing ladder. This mixed
use will address a number of housing needs in this part of the city
while also freeing up much needed “family homes” as older
residents “downsize”. A capital receipt of at least £2m for the land
will also be released, as anticipated when Lowfields School moved
to the York High site.

As stated above, it is also proposed that the facilities for older
people originally envisaged as part of the Community Village on
the Lowfields site be, instead, provided at a newly built Extra Care
and Health Hub which is expected to replace the Oakhaven OPH
on Front Street. This central location will be ideal for both the
residents of the Extra Care Scheme but also for their neighbours
who are out and about in Acomb, able to pop in to use the facilities
on site. This would, of course, be subject to approval of business
case and funding bids.

It is also proposed that we explore the benefits of building
additional “downsizing” homes to buy and to rent by older people
on the sites of Morrell House, Willow House, Windsor House and
Woolnough House when they become vacant, complementing the
provision of family homes on these sites and ensuring that vibrant
communities used by local people replace what is there at
present.



45.

46.

47.

Page 28
ANNEX B

Consultation

Whatever, and whenever, the announcement regarding York’s
Older Persons’ Homes it will be important to follow the approach
that has served us well throughout the programme: delivering
sensitive messages in a careful, well managed sequence:

a. Briefing key external stakeholders who have been actively
involved to date (e.g. Age UK York and York Older People’s
Assembly).

b. Briefing OPH Managers/staff & Care Management colleagues.
c. Updating OPH residents/relatives.

d. Updating all other stakeholders, including NHS commissioner
and provider organisations.

e. Media briefing.

A key stakeholder at this point is the current bidder in the ongoing
procurement process and they have been kept informed of our
plans, as highlighted above.

Council Plan 2011-2015 Priorities

The proposals work towards achieving the following Council plan
priorities:

Protecting Vulnerable People:

e providing great facilities that support dedicated high quality care
for people with dementia and other specialist needs; and

e investing in services to support people in the community.
Built Strong Communities:
e improving community infrastructure; and

e addressing housing need to ensure that vulnerable people have
supply to meet their needs.



Page 29

ANNEX B
Implications
Financial
48. A new finance model will be developed and work will continue on

49.

50.

51.

52.

this over the coming weeks. It should be noted that not all of the
proposals outlined in this report can be delivered within the
existing approved budget. Further work is needed to identify any
potential additional sources of income from the HCA, health
partners and betterment on receipts from the disposal of sites
allocated to fund this programme. The full strategic vision outlined
in this report can not therefore be delivered without securing this
additional funding.

Some costs are likely to be able to be funded from capital receipts
associated with the project (i.e. the sale of the current OPHsites).

As part of business case preparation we will examine the potential
to bid into the:

a. £120m Homes & Communities Agency Care and Support
Specialist Housing Fund which has a closing date of 29" May
2015 and an announcement of allocations in October 2015;

b. NHS England Primary Care Infrastructure Fund which has £1b
of funds to allocated over the next four years with the next call
for bids likely to be in the summer of 2015; and

c. the Homes and Communities Agency’s affordable housing
programme which has c£750m to allocate prior to 2020 and
where bids can be made at any time.

Following competitive procurement we now know that we cannot
secure a provider who can meet our detailed requirements and
specification with the resources we have available:

a. based upon our original intention of commissioning 162 care
beds for the exclusive use of the Council the average annual
costs were £1.5m greater than budget; and

b. further options to bring the costs down were explored but these
have not proved possible and all alternatives left a significant
funding gap.

Since Cabinet approved a budget of £500k on 4 June 2013 to
progress the procurement, £330k has been spent to date. This



53.

4.

55.

56.

Page 30
ANNEX B

was primarily on legal, financial and procurement costs. This will
need to be funded from within existing revenue budgets.

Equalities

In considering this matter the Council must have regard to the
public sector equality duty. In summary, those subject to the
equality duty must, in the exercise of their functions, have due
regard to the need to:

a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act.

b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

c. Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality
involves:

a. Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due
to their protected characteristics.

b. Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected
groups where these are different from the needs of other
people.

c. Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in
public life or in other activities where their participation is
disproportionately low

An Equality Impact Assessment for the Housing for Older
programme was produced for the 15 May 2012 Cabinet Report. It
particularly highlighted the potential implications of the programme
for the health, security and wellbeing of frail residents and also
female members of staff who are older and also carers
themselves.

In response, the council developed and followed a ‘Moving Homes
Safely’ protocol which it followed when (in the first phase of the
programme) it closed Fordlands and Oliver House in March 2012,
to ensure that residents’ moves to their new homes were as well
planned and carefully managed as possible. Likewise, careful
management of staff change helped to mitigate the impact of



S7.

58.

59.

60.

61.

Page 31
ANNEX B

these closures. The approach to the new proposals will be guided
by these experiences and careful attention to the needs of the
individuals involved.

An OPH Wider Reference Group was established to act as a
sounding board for the development of plans as the
implementation of the programme unfolds. The project team also
continues to use established channels to communicate with, and
gather the views of, OPH managers and staff, care management
staff, and Health colleagues.

Property

Existing Older Persons’ Homes and proposed OPH sites

Our intention is to re-provide accommodation for older people who
have care needs so that we are able to close or convert existing
OPHs. Two homes have already closed (Oliver House and
Fordlands) and the Council is currently reviewing bids to purchase
the Oliver House site.

The Council currently own and manage seven OPHs: Grove
House, Haxby Hall, Morrell House, Oakhaven, Windsor House,
Willow House and Woolnough House. The proposals listed above
would allow these homes to close in the following order

Year 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019

Number | 1 2 2 2

The order in which homes should close will be determined
following consultation with residents and their family/carers, with
staff and with other stakeholders. We will also be guided by
property investment decisions such as the condition of the existing
building, opportunities for redevelopment of the site subject to any
planning constraints and market conditions and demand.

York’s current OPHs are old (built in the 1960’s) and increasingly
not equipped to meet modern day needs and expectations; for
example, only 31 of the 225 beds have ensuite facilities. Despite
best efforts to invest and the dedication of staff, it is right to seek
to replace them.



62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

Page 32
ANNEX B

While current Care Quality Commission inspections identify
satisfaction with current standards it is probable that future
changes in standards may make some homes obsolete and/or
necessitate significant investment.

As a forward thinking authority, it is imperative that we ensure that
we have a viable and deliverable programme, which pre-empts the
further inevitable decline of these facilities and maintains a quality

of service, which our residents rightly expect.

A phased replacement of OPHs is proposed with the first to go in
late 2016 and some still remaining in use until 2019. Itis
necessary to keep up with essential maintenance during this
period in order to keep homes safe and comfortable. This is to be
funded from the existing Adult Social Care Capital Grant.

If there is no requirement to reuse vacant OPH sites then the sites
will be sold and used to fund the project. If any of the sites are to
be reused then either other sites will need to be identified to obtain
the capital funding required or an alternative revenue stream will
be need to be identified to fund the additional prudential
borrowing.

Glen Lodge Extension

Land beside Glen Lodge on Sixth Avenue was previously
occupied by the Heworth Lighthouse project. They have moved
out and the site is available for re-development. The site has
been assessed as suitable for up to 20 homes (which could be
built through the HRA subject to land transfer from the General
Fund) or as an extension to the Glen Lodge Extra Care Scheme.

If Members agree to the extension of Glen Lodge then the capital
costs will be c£2.5m, funded from HCA grant funding. Members
have already agreed to transfer the site from General Fund to
HRA at the capital value for the site (to be determined by Head of
APM) and subject to this strategic review.

Burnholme Care and Community Hub

No capital receipt is expected from the school site and the Asset &
Property Management team are actively involved in the
development of the business case for this project.



69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

Page 33
ANNEX B

Lowfields

A minimum £2m capital receipt is expected from the site as per
the assumed receipt in the capital programme.

The site of Oakhaven Older Persons Home

This is an excellent location on a busy main street and would suit
alternative use as an Extra Care Home. Planning and site
constraints may limit the size and massing of any new
development.

Legal

The current procurement process

It is the view of the legal team that the procurement process has
been run correctly to date and that appropriate legal input and
advice has been taken at all stages. The dilemma that the Council
are currently faced with and which has ultimately led to the
withdrawal of two bidders is intrinsically linked to the affordability
of the project rather than the procurement process itself.

If we receive approval from Members to abandon the procurement
process the Council will need to take formal steps to bring the
current procurement process to an end.

Opportunities available for delivery

The new proposals detailed in this report are permissible and can
be summarised as follows:

a. Procurement of capital works and/or extensions to current
Council Sheltered Housing with Extra Care fits within our
normal approach to the procurement of capital works and
subject to the necessary due diligence on the existing sites and
confirmation of title/related property issues is, therefore,
considered to be relatively low risk.

b. Procurement of new Extra Care facilities in partnership with
Housing Association partners and/or developers is permissible
given our strategic housing obligations and may be able to be
procured via existing procurement routes or frameworks. This
will need to be considered in more detail in due course.



74.

75.

76.

17.

Page 34
ANNEX B

c. The purchase of care beds from independent sector providers
reflects current Council practice and it is considered to be
relatively low risk.

d. The use of grants or other support to encourage third sector
and independent care providers to increase the supply of
residential care facilities suitable for people with high dementia
and/or physical dependency care needs is uncharted territory
for the Council and will require further investigation before the
legal and procurement risks are fully understood.

e. The development of the Burnholme site is a complex project
given the range of partners involved and the outcomes
expected. The procurement and legal structures are yet to be
determined and will required further consideration. There are a
number of different procurement routes available depending on
the final structure/details of the scheme and whether or not the
additional care facilities are provided for. The various options
will need to be subject to further review and scrutiny before a
firm decision is made.

Human Resources

The Human Resources implications of the Housing for Older
programme have been considered in previous Cabinet Reports.
The key implication is upon the existing staff that run the service.

The previous plan (to replace OPHs with two newly built care
homes) would have seen some staff transferring under TUPE
arrangements.

The proposals within this paper include for a variety of methods of
delivery of modernised care for Older Persons within the City,
which is appropriate to their needs and enables more independent
living. In delivering this programme of change, the Council will
need to consult closely with the existing staff and to ensure that,
where there are opportunities, they are available to appropriately
qualified staff, who wish to stay in employment.

A workforce plan will be developed to maximise opportunities for
existing staff and, where necessary, to offer retraining or
redundancy.



Page 35
ANNEX B

Other Implications

78. There are no specific Crime and Disorder or Information
Technology implications arising from this report.

Risk Management

79. The previous proposal relating to the procurement of two new care
homes was identified at the outset as having significant, long term
financial implications for the Council. A key risk identified at the
time was that there was a risk that the tenders could come back at
a higher cost than estimated, resulting in an ongoing budget
pressure for the Council. This risk has crystalised and no more
funding is available.

80. There was also a risk that the existing sites may not realise the
anticipated level of capital receipts included in the financial model.
Indications from recent land sales show that this risk is minimal.

81. The new proposals contained in this report have a lower risk
profile, primarily because there are several different routes
adopted, and they follow, with the exeption of the Burnholme
development, tried and tested approaches. However, risks will be
carefully managed.

82. There remains a significant risk that the proposals outlined in this
report can not be delivered within the funding currently available.
Should the Council be unsuccessful in identifying and securing
alternative sources of funding some elements of the proposals will
need to be reviewed and amended in order to keep within the
Councils approved budget.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer responsible for the
report:

Roy Wallington Guy Van Dichele,

Older Person's Accommodation Director of Adult Social Care

Lead Tel: 01904 554045

Tel: 01904 552822




Page 36
ANNEX B

Report Date |23 February
Approved 2015

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Legal — Ruth Barton (Ext 1724)

Finance — Debbie Mitchell (Ext 4161)

Property — Philip Callow (Ext 3360) and lan Asher (Ext 3379)

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all [ All [V

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers

Care and Support Specialist Housing Fund, Homes & Communities
Agency, February 2015.

Primary Care Infrastructure Fund, NHS England, January 2015.
Integrated Operational Plan: 2014-2019, Value of York Clinical
Commissioning Group, 2014.

Supported Housing Strategy: 2014-2019, City of York Council.

Positive Ageing, Housing Choices: Older People’s Housing Strategy
2011-2015, City of York Council.

Glossary of abbreviations used in the report:

HCA — Homes & Communities Agency

HRA — Housing Revenue Account

NHS — National Health Service

OPH - Older Persons’ Home, previously referred to as — Elderly
Persons’ Homes

RSL — Registered Social Landlord

TUPE - Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Called-In Item: The Council's Housing for Older People Programme
	Annex A - Extract Cabinet Decisions
	EPH Reprovision Project Update - 3rd March 2015 - for publication 23 February 2015


